
 

  CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA AND SUMMARY REPORT 

September 22, 2015 – POLICY SESSION 

(Please note the Policy Session will begin at 7:30 p.m.) 

 
Meetings of the City Council of Clearfield City may be conducted via electronic means pursuant to Utah Code Ann. 

§ 52-4-207 as amended. In such circumstances, contact will be established and maintained via electronic means and 

the meetings will be conducted pursuant to the Electronic Meetings Policy established by the City Council for 

electronic meetings.  

 
Executive Conference Room 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 
6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

Interviews with City Attorney Candidates 

 

(TENTATIVE) The Council may consider a motion to enter into a Closed Session for the purpose of 

discussing the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an individual. 

Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-204 and §52-4-205(1)(a) 
 

(Any items not fully addressed prior to the Policy Session will be addressed in a Work Session  

immediately following the Policy Session) 

 

 

City Council Chambers 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 

7:30 P.M. POLICY SESSION 
CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Shepherd 

OPENING CEREMONY:   Councilmember Benson 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   August 25, 2015 – Work Session 

      September 8, 2015 – Work Session 

      September 8, 2015 – Policy Session 

       

PRESENTATION: 

1. PRESENTATION TO ANDREW BENSON FOR RECOGNITION OF RECEIVING 

THE RANK OF EAGLE SCOUT 
 

BACKGROUND: Andrew Benson has completed the requirements to receive the rank of Eagle 

Scout. Mayor Shepherd and the City Council desire to recognize Andrew and acknowledge his 

achievement. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

2. PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED REZONE FOR 

A PORTION OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 850 WEST 1600 

SOUTH (TIN: 12-391-0014) FROM (C-2) COMMERCIAL TO (R-3) RESIDENTIAL    

 



 

 BACKGROUND: The proposal includes a request for approximately 2.25 acres to be rezoned 

from (C-2) Commercial to (R-3) Multi-family Residential with the intent to construct 30 dwelling 

units, specifically designed as two 12-plexes and one 6-plex. This property is part of an overall 

development plan for the corner of Antelope Drive and 1000 West which already includes 26 

businesses developed over multiple phases. The remaining property is tucked back off of 

Antelope Drive with no frontage on a major commercial transportation corridor. The property 

owner indicates that the remaining property has been marketed as commercial for 17+ years. The 

property owner feels that the parcel for consideration with this application has limited 

commercial viability and that multi-family residential represents the highest and best use of the 

property at this time. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezone, subject to 

certain conditions (site plan approval, subdivision plat approval, and execution/recording of a 

development agreement), during its meeting on Wednesday, September 2, 2015. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment and close the public hearing. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED REZONE FOR 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1760 SOUTH MAIN STREET (TIN: 12-242-0002) FROM 

(C-2) COMMERCIAL TO (PF) PUBLIC FACILITIES  

 
 BACKGROUND: The site is currently vacant but has been the recipient of several enforcement 

actions related to the maintenance of weeds. A public facility zoning designation is appropriate as 

the uses on the property directly south are public buildings and this rezone will facilitate the 

success of Antelope Elementary by assisting with a parking need. The Planning Commission 

recommended approval of the rezone during its meeting on Wednesday, September 2, 2015.  

 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2015-16 AUTHORIZING THE REZONE 

OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1760 SOUTH MAIN STREET FROM (C-2) 

COMMERCIAL TO (PF) PUBLIC FACILITIES  

  
 RECOMMENDATION: Approve Ordinance 2015-16 authorizing the rezone of property located 

at 1760 South Main Street from (C-2) Commercial to (PF) Public Facilities and authorize the 

Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

  

6. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2015R-25 EXPRESSING SUPPORT FOR 

THE DAVIS SCHOOL DISTRICT BOND ELECTION    

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2015R-25 expressing support for the Davis School 

District Bond election and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

7. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

(CDBG) CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION REPORT 

(CAPER) FOR PROGRAM YEAR JULY 1, 2014 TO JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 BACKGROUND: The Council received a copy of the 2014/2015 Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER). The public 



 

was given the opportunity to review the CAPER in the Community Development Office from 

August 20, 2015 to September 4, 2015. No public comments were received. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) and authorize the Mayor’s 

signature to any necessary documents.  

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS: 
 Mayor’s Report 

 City Councils’ Reports 

 City Manager’s Report 

 Staffs’ Reports 

 

 

**COUNCIL MEETING ADJOURN** 
 

 

Dated this 17
th

 day of September, 2015. 

 

/s/Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 

 

The City of Clearfield, in accordance with the ‘Americans with Disabilities Act’ provides 

accommodations and auxiliary communicative aids and services for all those citizens needing assistance.  

Persons requesting these accommodations for City sponsored public meetings, service programs or events 

should call Nancy Dean at 525-2714, giving her 48-hour notice.   

 



 

1 
 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

6:30 P.M. WORK SESSION 

August 25, 2015 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Ron Jones   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember  

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager  

    Brian Brower   City Attorney 

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir.  

    Spencer Brimley  Development Services Manager 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Kathryn Murray, Nike Peterson 

 

UPDATE ON THE RECYCLING PROGRAM 

 

Rich Knapp, Administrative Services Director, stated he had requested the front line utility staff 

to compile a list of anticipated questions/concerns specific to the recycle program in order for the 

Council to discuss appropriate responses. He distributed the questions and reviewed them with 

the Council: 

1. If a resident has not received notification for a number of itemized reasons/OR 

2. a resident is not found on the opt-out list after claiming they previously called in 

 

 Mr. Knapp pointed out some responses to consider for the first two questions and pointed 

 out the billing dates associated with each option.  

 

3.   If a new renter moves in after the opt-out window. Mr. Knapp recommended the new 

 renter could not discontinue recycling.  

 

4. If a new owner moves in after the opt-out window. Mr. Knapp recommended the new 

 owner could discontinue recycling, but only at the time of setting up the initial utility 

 account.  

 



 

2 
 

5. If a resident/landlord desires to opt out before completion of the residential units. Mr. 

 Knapp pointed out this would be a non-issue if new owners were allowed to opt out 

 (question #4). 

 

6. If a two unit residency only wants one can due to lack of space.  Mr. Knapp suggested 

 because unlike garbage, recycling was not an immediate public health issue; therefore, 

 the Council could allow the sharing of one recycle can between the two.  

 

Mr. Knapp reviewed other questions which should be considered: 

1. Under what circumstances can a resident opt out after September? 

2. Will there be a window for residents to opt out once they receive their first bill in 

November? 

3. If the service charge increases from low participation rates, will residents be able to leave 

the program? 

 

Mr. Knapp informed the Council of the City’s that 1300 of 5800 utility accounts had opted out of 

the recycle program to date which was equivalent to approximately seventy-seven percent still 

participating. He continued if 150 or more residents desired to opt out of the recycle program the 

City would be within the fifty to seventy five percent participation rate which was what staff 

anticipated. Mr. Knapp expressed his opinion the City probably wouldn’t meet the necessary 

participation rate if the Council allowed residents to continue to opt out after the August 31 

deadline. He requested direction from the Council and a discussion took place.  

 

The Council addressed question 5 and didn’t want the developer/builder to be able to opt out of 

the recycle program prior to the homes being sold and a discussion took place regarding when a 

resident would have the opportunity to opt out of the recycle program. Councilmember Benson 

stated she wanted a new resident/tenant to have the opportunity to opt out of the program. 

Councilmember Young expressed his preference that new residents and new renters should both 

had the opportunity to opt out. Councilmember Bush believed whoever resided at the home 

should have the choice to opt out. JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, pointed out, by ordinance, 

the owner of the home or landlord, was the utility bill account holder. Councilmember Jones then 

suggested allowing a resident to opt out anytime the billing information changed. The Council 

agreed with that suggestion.  

 

The Council discussed the proposed options specific to question 1 and 2 and determined the 

second option would be appropriate with a small administrative fee to retrieve the can. The 

Council agreed with all other suggested responses: 

 A new renter cannot discontinue recycling. 

 A new owner can discontinue recycling, but only at the time of setting up the utility 

account. 

 A two-unit residence with two separate required trash cans can share one recycle can 

because unlike garbage, recycling is not an immediate public health issue. 

 

A discussion took place regarding whether the City would offer an annual opt out for residents. 

Mr. Knapp reported published information regarding the recycling program stated there would 

not be an annual opt out period.   



 

3 
 

DISCUSSION ON A RAIN BARREL WATER COLLECTION PROGRAM 

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, reported there seemed to be a movement with some cities, 

encouraged by the Utah Rivers Council, to subsidize a program/cost to provide rain barrels to 

residents for the harvesting of rain water. He stated nothing in City ordinance precluded a 

resident from harvesting rain water. He explained the idea. The City would purchase a rain barrel 

for $75 and then sell it to the resident for $40, allowing the resident to obtain it for a discounted 

price providing the opportunity to use the collected rain water for outdoor watering. He inquired 

if this was something the Council wanted staff to pursue.  

 

Councilmember LeBaron suggested the Council begin discussing the issue in January to allow 

for an April implementation which would capitalize on collecting water during the rainy season.  

 

Mr. Allen reported he had spoken with cities participating in the program that indicated the 

implementation was a way to help residents feel good about water conservation.  

 

The Council believed there were better ways to use tax payer dollars then by subsidizing the 

program at $35 per barrel but wasn’t opposed to passing the entire $75 cost of the barrel on to 

the participant.   

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

 



 

1 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

6:30 P.M. WORK SESSION 

September 8, 2015 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Ron Jones   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember  

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager  

    Brian Brower   City Attorney 

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir.  

    Spencer Brimley  Development Services Manager 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Nike Peterson 

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON THE 700 SOUTH WELL REPAIR 

 

Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, reported the City experienced a power outage on a power 

pole near the 700 South well which resulted in a direct short in the transformer causing the City’s 

well to lose power. He mentioned the City paid funds to Rocky Mountain Power for the repair 

and once power was restored it was discovered the motor to the well was no longer operational.  

 

Mr. Hodge reported troubleshooting determined there was a short in the pump motor and stated it 

had been removed from the well and sent to be assessed whether it could be rebuilt. He 

distributed a handout reflecting costs associated with the power/transformer repair and proposed 

upgrade and reviewed those costs with the Council. He proposed combining the motor with the 

transformer replacement into one project; however, that would require additional funding of 

approximately $175,000. He indicated funds could be recognized in the Water Enterprise Fund 

for the expenditure and requested direction from the Council.   

 

A discussion took place regarding the age of the existing motor and if it would be covered under 

any warranty since it had been replaced within the last five years. Mr. Hodge mentioned any kind 

of warranty generally existed for one year. He indicated the power issue contributed to the well’s 



 

2 

 

failure this time. Councilmember Benson inquired if the City should consider purchasing the new 

motor from another company. Brian Brower, City Attorney, responded there were generally only 

two companies which responded during the bid process for such projects.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, announced the budget would need to be amended to include the 

new expense in order for staff to begin the process so it could meet the time frame needed to 

have the well operational during the summer months. The Council directed staff to proceed with 

the project.  

   

DISCUSSION ON THE PROPOSED REZONE OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

APPROXIMATELY 850 WEST 1600 SOUTH 

 

Spencer Brimley, Development Services Manager, reminded the Council the proposed rezone 

had been denied previously by the Council with a suggestion that Mr. Wilcox, the property 

owner, resubmit a new application with an accompanying conceptual subdivision and site plan of 

the proposed development. He informed the Council that the requested zone allowed up to 16 

units per acre which was equivalent to 36 units, but the current proposal was only requesting 30 

total units.  

 

Mr. Brimley shared a visual illustration identifying the location of the property and development 

proposal.  

 

He reported the Planning Commission recommended approval at its meeting on Wednesday, 

September 2, 2015 with the following conditions: 

 The Zoning Map Amendment is conditioned upon the submittal and approval of a Site 

Plan that is in substantial conformance with the preliminary Site Plan presented with this 

application. 

 Should the City Council accept the rezone of the property, prior to issuance of building 

permits for multi-family residential on the split-zoned parcel, it shall be properly 

subdivided through the City’s subdivision process and a final plat be approved, fully 

executed, and recorded.  

 A Development Agreement could be required prior to final approval of the zone change. 

This would require that the Council hold the public hearing on Tuesday, September 22, 

2015 and move the decision to a date certain when the Development Agreement is 

completed and ready for approval.  

 

Brian Brower, City Attorney, suggested the Council not approve a conditional rezone based on 

approval of a development agreement in the event that the two parties couldn’t agree to 

conditions set forth in such an agreement. He continued since rezones were discretionary, he 

would recommend getting a development agreement finalized and in place prior to approval of 

the rezone.  

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, proposed the Council determine the details it desired in a 

development agreement, hold the advertised public hearing associated with the rezone on 

September 22, 2015, and bring the development agreement and rezone to be considered by the 

Council for approval as scheduled items in a meeting.  



 

3 

 

 

Mayor Shepherd requested staff notify Mr. Wilcox of the requirement based on the discussion. 

Mr. Brimley responded the requirement had been included in the staff report and presentation 

during the September 2, 2015 Planning Commission meeting and indicated the property owner 

should already be aware of the requirement. He stated he would communicate the request to the 

owner on Wednesday, September 9, 2015.  

 

Mr. Allen inquired if there were aspects or specific items the Council desired to be addressed in 

the development agreement. Mayor Shepherd suggested similar requirements to that of the 

Sandridge Luxury Apartments project recently approved for downtown to ensure a quality 

product in that area of the City.  

 

Councilmember Benson mentioned concerns regarding safety had been expressed to her because 

of the location and suggested a lighting component also be included in the development 

agreement. Councilmember Bush suggested the inclusion of decorative poles and lighting. 

Councilmember Jones believed decorative street poles would reflect a quality product. Mr. 

Brimley pointed out the conceptual proposal included more parking than what was required in 

addition to having less density than what was allowed and believed that alone reflected quality 

over quantity. Mr. Brower also suggested the inclusions of elevations because it would illustrate 

to the Council the look of the development.  

 

Mr. Brimley added a sketch had been shared by Mr. Wilcox during the Planning Commission 

meeting which didn’t reflect any indication of materials and suggested the architecture and 

decorative elements would be critical to the development because it would be visible from 1700  

South/Antelope Drive.  

 

DISCUSSION ON THE PROPOSED REZONE OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1760 SOUTH 

MAIN FOR THE DAVIS SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Spencer Brimley, Development Services Manager, informed the Council that a rezone 

application had been received by Davis School District for approximately 0.08 acres located at 

1760 South Main Street, just north of Antelope Elementary School. The request was to rezone 

from C-2, Commercial to PF, Public Facilities, which would allow for additional off-site parking 

for activities that took place during off school hours. He shared a visual illustration identifying 

the property proposed for the rezone.  

 

Mr. Brimley pointed out on the map a small sliver of property between the School and that which 

would be rezoned and indicated it would continue to be owned by Mr. Chelemes and emphasized 

it would not be included in the proposed rezone. Mayor Shepherd inquired if that parcel was 

wide enough for a future street. JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, responded it wasn’t wide 

enough to be a street but it could be a drive.  

 

Mr. Brimley reported he had received an email from a resident that believed Antelope 

Elementary School had adequate parking, but believed there was more of a traffic circulation 

issue and stated the additional parking lot wouldn’t address that concern. Mr. Brimley explained 

the intent of the School District wasn’t to solve the parking issue at the school; rather, it merely 



 

4 

 

desired to provide additional parking for evening meetings and events which took place at the 

School. Councilmember LeBaron expressed his opinion Antelope Elementary only had adequate 

parking if the parking lot of the Island View Chapel/Church was available.   

 

A discussion took place relative to the Chelemes property which would separate Antelope 

Elementary School and the proposed new parking lot. Mayor Shepherd stated he would have 

liked the School District to incorporate the Chelemes property into the proposed parking lot and 

the Council agreed. Mr. Allen responded Mr. Chelemes didn’t want to sell the property because 

he needed the access to his agricultural property to the west from South Main Street. He added 

the agricultural property was currently on the market to be sold.  

 

Councilmember Benson inquired if the proposed parking lot would be open to the public for use 

or if it would be chained off until the school deemed it necessary to make available for its uses. 

Mr. Brimley reported the School District had indicated during the Planning Commission meeting 

that it would be available to those participating in soccer games behind the elementary. 

 

Mayor Shepherd inquired if the access road could be shifted to the north adjacent to the Chevron 

allowing the proposed parking lot to be adjacent to the elementary school property. The Council 

also expressed agreement. Adam Lenhard, City Manager, responded he had also made that 

suggestion to Craig Carter, Davis School District, who indicated the property owner wasn’t open 

to considering that option. Councilmember LeBaron pointed out the challenges associated with 

having two entrances/exits in close proximity to one another.   

 

Mr. Allen pointed out the parking lot could always be expanded to the south anytime in the 

future if and when the agricultural property was ever sold and developed.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 

 

 

 



 

1 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 

September 8, 2015 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Ron Jones   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember  

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager  

    Brian Brower   City Attorney 

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir.  

    Spencer Brimley  Development Services Manager 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Nike Peterson, Keggan Musaalo, Freda Musaalo, Bob Bercher 

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Mayor Shepherd informed the citizens present that if they would like to comment during Public 

Hearings or Citizen Comments there were forms to fill out by the door. 

 

Councilmember Young conducted the Opening Ceremony.  

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 11, 2015 AND AUGUST 25, 2015 

POLICY SESSIONS  

 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve the minutes from the August 11, 2015 and 

August 25, 2015 policy sessions, as written, seconded by Councilmember Jones. The motion 

carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, 

LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None.  

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED DISPOSITION OF 

CITY PROPERTY FOR THE WEST SQUARE PROJECT LOCATED IN THE VICINITY OF 

850 SOUTH 490 EAST  

 

Through the course of development, property had been deeded to Clearfield City for the purpose 

of extending Depot Street south of SR-193. Now that the street extension through that property 

has been completed, the City was left with excess property beyond what was needed for the 

right-of-way. Due to its dimensions, the excess property was undevelopable, and under the 

current circumstances it would be the City’s property to maintain. Coincidentally, the owners of 

the adjacent property to the east have received land use approval to develop their property (a 

multi-family residential project called “West Square”), and have requested the City convey to 

them the excess property so that it could be incorporated into their development. Due to the 

otherwise undevelopable nature of the property by itself and the added value to the owners of 

West Square if it were to be incorporated into their project, staff agreed the offer of $10,000 for 

the property to be a fair price. The disposition of this property was discussed with the Council 

during its work on session on Tuesday, August 18, 2015.  

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, shared a visual presentation which identified the surplus 

property. He stated the property had been acquired for the purpose of future development and 

emphasized at the completion of the West Square development, the City would have been 

required to maintain an odd shaped parcel. He continued the developers had inquired if the City 

would be willing to sell the surplus property which could be incorporated in the project. He 

reported the property was approximately one half acre in size (.48) and due to its dimensions 

could never be developed on its own. Staff recommended the Council approve the disposition of 

the property for the price of $10,000.  

 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m. 
 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 

 

There were no public comments.  
 

Councilmember Bush moved to close the public hearing at 7:05 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember Young. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED DISPOSITION OF 

CITY PROPERTY FOR THE SANDRIDGE LUXURY APARTMENTS PROJECT LOCATED 

IN THE VICINITY OF 50 SOUTH DEPOT, 70 SOUTH DEPOT  AND 145 SOUTH DEPOT 

 

The developers of the Sandridge Luxury Apartments would like to incorporate portions of two 

smaller remnant parcels owned by the City as well as a vacated portion of the Depot Street right-

of-way into their downtown redevelopment project. The City received the two remnant parcels 

from UDOT when the alignment of SR-126 was reconfigured. Also, the City recently vacated an 

adjacent portion of the Depot Street right-of-way at the developers’ request. The disposition of 



 

3 

 

the properties was discussed with the City Council during its work session on Tuesday, August 

18, 2015.  

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, reminded the Council that the CDRA would be selling the 

three main parcels of property for the Sandridge Development. He reported in addition to the 

main properties, there were some miscellaneous properties which would also need to be included 

in the development which were owned by the City. Mr. Allen shared a visual presentation 

identifying the location of the properties and oriented the Council with the map. He pointed out 

the parcels were undevelopable in their current state and staff was recommending deeding the 

properties, a total of 13,601 square feet or 0.312 acres to Clearfield Properties LLC, to be 

included in the Sandridge Development.  

 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:09 p.m. 
 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 

 

There were no public comments.  
 

Councilmember Jones moved to close the public hearing at 7:09 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember Benson. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None.  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

There were no citizen comments.  

 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2015R-23 AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSITION OF REAL 

PROPERTY FOR THE WEST SQUARE PROJECT LOCATED IN THE VICINITY OF 850 

SOUTH 490 EAST  

  

Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve Resolution 2015R-23 authorizing the 

disposition of real property for the West Square Project located in the vicinity of 850 South 

490 East and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, seconded by 

Councilmember Benson. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. 

 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2015R-24 AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSITION OF REAL 

PROPERTY FOR THE SANDRIDGE LUXURY APARTMENTS PROJECT LOCATED IN 

THE VICINITY OF 50 SOUTH DEPOT, 70 SOUTH DEPOT AND 145 SOUTH DEPOT 

 

Councilmember Young moved to approve Resolution 2015R-24 authorizing the disposition 

of real property for the Sandridge Luxury Apartments Project located in the vicinity of 50 

South Depot, 70 South Depot and 145 South Depot and authorize the Mayor’s signature to 

any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember  Bush. The motion carried upon 

the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and 

Young. Voting NO – None. 



 

4 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AWARD OF BID TO HUSKIE’Z LANDSCAPING FOR THE STEED 

PARK IRRIGATION PROJECT  

  

Staff solicited bids for the Steed Park Irrigation Project. Three contractors returned qualified bids 

for the irrigation work that included three separate options: 1) south Steed Park, 2) north Steed 

Park, and, 3) the installation of a new main line for future development on the north side of the 

Steed Pond. The lowest responsible bidder was Huskie’z Landscaping Inc. of Riverton, Utah 

with a total bid amount of $346,075 for all three options.  
 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, explained the bid for the project had requested 

vendors submit bids in three separate phases: South Steed Irrigation Project, North Steed Project 

and the extension of a main line from the southwest portion of the pond extending around the top 

of the pond. He reported when staff originally budgeted for the project the plan was to complete 

the South Steed Irrigation portion of the project but as the project was designed it was believed 

there was a possibility of completing additional work with the budget funds of $300,000.  

 

Mr. Howes directed the Council to the bid tabulation included in the packet and reported three 

bids were received and all bids exceeded the available budget for the total package of the project. 

He commented because South Steed Irrigation was the main focus of the project, Huskie’z 

Landscaping was determined to be the lowest responsible bid. He reported staff was 

recommending awarding the bid to Huskie’z Landscaping for the South Steed potion of the 

project with the bid amount of $230,522, and allowing the remainder of the $300,000 

appropriated funds be held in contingency for the purpose of completing as much of the North 

Steed portion of the project as possible. Mr. Howes explained the North Steed portion of the 

project was critical to complete because the main line that fed all the North Steed portion of the 

park fed off the main line in 300 North through the Holt Elementary property causing difficulties 

when the line needed to be repaired. He stated to separate the lines the north portion needed to be 

connected to the existing main line so there was a minimal amount of work that needed to be 

completed as part of the project so that connection could be made. Councilmember LeBaron 

inquired if there were enough funds left in contingency to complete that additional but necessary 

work for the northern portion of the project. Mr. Howes clarified the bid tabulation sheet 

illustrated the City would be able to complete the irrigation for the southern area of the pond and 

believed the funds would allow the completion for the main line necessary to separate the two 

sections of Steed Park and to complete the South Steed project. He explained the City’s window 

of opportunity to complete the project was from October 16, 2015 to March 10, 2016 in order to 

avoid disrupting the revenue stream from the softball league.  

 

Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve the Award of Bid to Huskie’z Landscaping 

Inc. in the amount of $230,522, bid amount for Option 1, south Steed Park, with $69,478 

for contingency costs for a total project cost of $300,000 and authorize the Mayor’s 

signature to any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Jones. The motion 

carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, 

LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. 

 

 

 

 



 

5 

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS 
 

Mayor Shepherd 
1. Announced Lunch with the Mayor would soon begin and suggested organizing something similar 

with students at North Davis Junior High.  

2. Informed the Council that the City would be participating in a fundraiser benefiting spouses and 

families of deployed airmen on Saturday, September 12, 2015. He requested a councilmember and spouse 

represent the City at its second sponsored table.  

3. Announced he would be out of town from Tuesday, September 29, 2015 through Saturday, 

October 3, 2015.  

   

Councilmember Benson – nothing to report.  

   

Councilmember Bush  
1. Reminded the Council the sewer pipeline construction project along 1700 South was still in 

progress. He announced it had been completed to 1000 West so far.      

  

Councilmember Jones – Announced he received his recycling bin today and stated he was excited for the 

curbside recycling program to begin within the City.  

  

Councilmember LeBaron – mentioned the grass fire on 5000 West in West Point.   

   

Councilmember Young – nothing to report.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager 
1.  Informed the Council that he had sent his monthly update.  

2.  Mentioned City staff had received quite a few calls inquiring about receiving the new recycling 

can. He indicated Waste Management anticipated having all recycling cans delivered by Monday, 

September 14, 2015.     

  

STAFFS’ REPORTS 

 
Nancy Dean, City Recorder  
1. Reviewed the Council’s calendar: 

 No meeting on Tuesday, September 15, 2015.  

 Next meeting was a policy session scheduled for Tuesday, September 22, 2015.   

 No meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, September 29, 2015. 

 Special Session scheduled for Tuesday, October 6, 2015.  
2. Reminded the Council of the Utah League of Cities and Towns meetings planned for next week at 

the Sheraton Hotel in Salt Lake City.  

   

 

There being no further business to come before the Council Councilmember Bush moved to 

adjourn at 7:24 p.m., seconded by Councilmember LeBaron. Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None.  

 

 

 



 

    
 

 
 

 

City Council 
 STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 
TO:    Mayor Shepherd, City Council, and Executive Staff  
 
FROM:  Spencer W. Brimley 
   Development Services Manager 

Spencer.Brimley@clearfieldcity.org  
(801) 525-2785 
 

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing and Discussion on RZN 1507-0006 a request by Brian 

Robbins and Rick Scadden on behalf of Wilcox Farms for a Rezone of a 
portion of property from Commercial (C-2) to Residential (R-3), located at 
850 West 1600 South (TIN: 12-391-0014). The total parcel is 
approximately 3.371 acres; however, the rezone request is for a portion of 
the property, approximately 2.25 acres. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff’s recommendation to the Planning commission was to approve as conditioned, RZN 
1507-0006 a request by Brian Robbins and Rick Scadden on behalf of Wilcox Farms for a 
Rezone of 2.25 acres of property from Commercial (C-2) to Residential (R-3), located at 850 
West 1600 South (TIN: 12-391-0014), based on the discussion and findings in the Staff Report. 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of RZN 1507-0006 to the City Council 
at their meeting on September 2, 2105, based on the findings and conditions included in the 
staff report. 
 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

 

Project Information 
Project Name Wilcox Farms LC 
Site Location 850 West 1600 South  
Tax ID Number 12-391-0014 
Applicant  Brian Robbins and Rick Scadden 
Owner Con Wilcox (Wilcox Farms) 
Proposed Actions Zoning Map Amendment (Re-zoning) 
Current Zoning C-2 (Commercial)  
Proposed Zoning R-3 (Multiple-family Residential) 
Land Use Classification Residential  
Gross Site Area  2.25 acres 

mailto:Spencer.Brimley@clearfieldcity.org


RZN 1507-0006 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to R-3 
22 September 2015 City Council Meeting 

2 

 
 
 

 
 
HISTORY 
April 1998 Rezoning of 16 acres referred to as “Wilcox’s Corner” from A-1 

to C-2 
 

March 3, 2010 Planning Commission recommends denial of request for 
General Plan Amendment from Commercial to Residential of 
Lot 14 of Wilcox Farms 
 

March 9, 2010 General Plan Amendment for Lot 14 Wilcox Farms request 
withdrawn 
 

April 7, 2010 Planning Commission recommends approval of request for a 
General Plan Amendment from Commercial to Residential of 
Lot 14, part of Lot 15, parcel 12-391-0017 and a portion of the 
parcel at 1525 S and 1000 West.  
 

April 13, 2010 Council approves General Plan Amendment from Commercial 
to Residential of Lot 14, part of Lot 15, parcel 12-391-0017 and 
a portion of the parcel at 1525 S and 1000 West. 
 

June 5, 2013 Planning Commission continues item RZN 1303-0004 at the 
applicant’s request, a request by Con Wilcox to rezone from C-
2 to R-2 based on a denial recommendation due to limitation in 
General Plan to allow rezones for any additional property to 
multi-family in Clearfield City. 

Surrounding Properties and Uses: Current Zoning District Comprehensive Plan  
Land Use Classification 

North 

 
Existing agricultural & 
residential uses (single 
family) 
 

 
A-1 (Agricultural) 

 
Commercial  

East 

 
Power corridor and 
undeveloped 
manufacturing properties 
 

 
A-1 (Agricultural) 

 
Manufacturing 

South     
 
Developed Wilcox Farms 
Commercial Subdivision 
 

C-2 (Commercial) Commercial  

West 

 
Developed Wilcox Farms 
Commercial Subdivision, 
1000 West, then Syracuse 
City existing single-family 
residential. 
 

C-2 (Commercial) 
Syracuse City 

(Residential 2.90 DU/AC and 
5.44 DU/AC)  

Commercial 
Syracuse City 

(Residential 2.90 DU/AC and 
5.44 DU/AC) 



RZN 1507-0006 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to R-3 
22 September 2015 City Council Meeting 

3 

 
 

December 9, 2014 
 
 
May 2015 

Council approves General Plan Amendment removing 
language from Chapter 4 of the City’s Affordable Housing 
Element which restricted any rezones to multi-family zoning 
classifications outside of a mixed-use zone. 
 
The City Council upon recommendation from the Planning 
Commission and consideration of the proposal, denied 
Ordinance 2015-11 related to application RZN 1504-0001.  The 
City Council suggested the applicant may want to consider 
reapplication with additional information which included what 
the plan would be for development of the property to the north.    
Also, the concept plan for the property to be rezoned was in 
conflict with the Master Street Plan.   
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Zoning Map Amendment Information: 
 
Clearfield City Zoning Map Amendment Requested: Parcels in question have been highlighted 
orange to indicate the change from C-2 (Commercial) to R-3 (Multi-Family Residential). 

 
 
Background 
The proposal includes a request for approximately 2.25 acres to be rezoned from C-2 
(Commercial) to the R-3 (Multi-family Residential) zone with the intent to construct 30 dwelling 
units, specifically designed as two 12-plexes and one 6-plex. Should the project continue to 
moving forward, staff has recommended previously that a development agreement be 
considered between the applicant and the City specifying design standards including, but not 



RZN 1507-0006 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to R-3 
22 September 2015 City Council Meeting 

4 

 
limited to, exterior building materials, colors and design elements for elevations of the proposed 
project. 
 
This property is part of an overall development plan for the corner of Antelope Drive and 1000 
West which already includes 26 businesses developed over multiple phases. The remaining 
property is tucked back off of Antelope Drive with no frontage on a major commercial 
transportation corridor. The property owner indicates that the remaining property has been 
marketed as commercial for 17+ years. The property owner feels that the parcel for 
consideration with this application has limited commercial viability and that multi-family 
residential represents the highest and best use of the property at this time.    
 
General Plan and Zoning 
This area had an approved amendment to the General Plan to residential in 2010, that is a 
general designation to residential use versus a commercial use and still requires consistency 
and conformance with the General Plan for any future rezoning. A request for a rezone from C-2 
(Commercial) to R-3 (Multiple-family Residential) is not inconsistent with the current General 
Plan. Rezone requests are not obligatory, but are discretionary. The change to the General Plan 
in December 2014 allows the City to review rezone requests to multi-family on a case by case 
basis, evaluating the merits of each specific project.   

A previous proposal for development on this same property caused City staff to analyze the 
Master Streets Plan and Transportation Map for that area. The Master Streets Plan and 
Transportation Map reflect 750 West extending farther north but the Rocky Mountain Power 
corridor passes diagonally through that location limiting future development potential.  

The City Council met in work session on August 18, 2015 to discuss the proposals and 
recommended creating the road extension at 900 West to a future connection to 1000 West at 
approximately 1475 South. The Council approved in their August 25, 2015 policy meeting the 
amendment to the Master Streets Plan to allow the complete removal of 750 West and to 
include, as a part of the new map, an alignment from 900 West up to 1475 South.  Additionally 
they recommended that 1600 South be shown as a cul-de-sac in the Master Streets Plan.   

 
Zoning Map Amendment 
The applicant is requesting only a 2.25 acre portion of the 3.371 acre parcel to be rezoned to R-
3 (Multi-Family Residential). Prior to issuance of any building permits on the split-zoned parcel, 
the Planning Office would require that the property go through the proper legal subdivision 
process. This is included as a condition of approval.  
 
The applicant has provided a basic Site Plan showing the configuration of the proposed rezone, 
and the residential development in the R-3 zone. The basic density calculation can be met on 
the parcel as configured. The required open space is provided at approximately 42%. Parking 
exceeds the required standard of 2.125 stalls per unit by providing 2.6 stalls per unit. There 
would need to be at least one covered stall per unit to meet the R-3 code. The project is 
accessed off an extension of 1600 South as a public street configured at a cul-de-sac. The size 
and design of the cul-de-sac would need to meet fire requirements. Exterior building elevations 
will also be required at the Site Plan review. 
 
Public Comment 
No public comment has been received to date. 
 



RZN 1507-0006 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to R-3 
22 September 2015 City Council Meeting 

5 

 
 

FINDINGS 
 
Zoning Map Amendment 
Clearfield Land Use Ordinance Section 11-6-3 establishes the following findings the Planning 
Commission shall make to approve Zoning Map Amendments.  The findings and staff’s 
evaluation are outlined below:  
 

  Review Consideration Staff Analysis 

1)  
The proposed amendment is in 
accordance with the General Plan and 
Map; or 

 
This condition can be met. The General Plan land use 
designation is Residential. The R-3 Zone is listed as a 
permitted use in the Residential land use category. 
 

2)  

 
Changed conditions make the 
proposed amendment necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of this Title. 
 

 
Recent changes to the General Plan language allow 
multi-family rezone requests to be considered on a case 
by case basis.  
 

 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

1. This Zoning Map Amendment is conditioned upon the submittal and approval of a Site 
Plan that is in substantial conformance with the preliminary Site Plan presented with this 
application. 
 

2. Should the City Council accept the rezone of this property, prior to issuance of building 
permits for multi-family residential on the split-zoned parcel, it shall be properly 
subdivided through the City’s subdivision process and a final plat be approved, fully 
executed, and recorded.  
 

3. Development agreement required. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Wilcox Farm Housing Development Preliminary Concept Plan 
2. Wilcox Farms Phasing Plan 
3. Aerial Photo Overlay 

 



90
0 W

ES
T 

ST
RE

ET
 

1475 SOUTH

CON AND JERI WILCOX
12-065-0104

173.08'

432.90'

171.90'

226.93'

183.74'

11
0.0

0'

22
.00

'

1.00'

88
.34

'
10

9.5
0'

396.10'

26
.0'

30
.0'

S 36°41'00" E     755.64'

N 89°52'19" W     889.00'

N 
0°
07
'41
" E
    
 19
7.8
4'

S 89°52'19" E
1.00'

N 0°07'41" E
22.00'

N 
0°
07
'41
" E
    
 11
0.0
0'

10
00

 W
ES

T 
ST

RE
ET

 
QUITZE GARCIA

12-065-0187

DAVID AND JARILYNN WOOD
12-065-0023

CON JARED AND MICHELLE
WILCOX

12-065-0005

SHELBY AND JASON HOLMES
12-065-0096

STEVE AND JANET FREY
12-065-0091

LOT 10 LOT 11 LOT 12

LOT 13

WILCOX FARMS AMENDED

UTAH POWER AND LIGHT

CORRIDOR

30.0' 30.0'

N 
0°
07
'41

" E
    
  6
70
.81

'

S 89°52'19" E      157.99'

1600 SOUTH STREET

STREET 

POINT OF BEGINNING

LOT 14

1475 SOUTH
STREET 

LOT 603
28,457 sq.ft.
0.653 acres

LOT 605
51,586 sq.ft.
1.184 acres

LOT 602
38,342 sq.ft.
0.880 acres

LOT 608
43,532 sq.ft.
0.999 acres

LOT 601
52,704 sq.ft.
1.210 acres

LOT 607
43,517 sq.ft.
0.999 acres

LOT 606
24,916 sq.ft.
0.572 acres

S 89°52'19" E     561.24'

S 89°52'19" E     190.00'

N 
0°
07
'41
" E
    
 12
3.0
0'

N 89°52'19" W     99.00'

N 89°52'19" W
59.68'

N 
0°
07
'41
" E
    
 96
.14
'

310.73'

128.85'

226.80'

329.50'

395.86'

204.62'

195.83'

59.68'

96
.14

'

157.32'

250.50'

93.27'N 89°52'19" W     157.32'

N 
0°
07
'41
" E

56
.00

'

C1

C2

C3

C4

55
.28

'
10

9.9
2'

11
0.3

7'

13
7.8

5'
13

7.8
5'

C5

C6

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

RADIUS

270.00'

270.00'

330.00'

330.00'

270.00'

330.00'

LENGTH

355.52'

68.01'

383.07'

134.57'

423.52'

517.64'

DELTA

75°26'37"

14°25'52"

66°30'34"

23°21'55"

89°52'29"

89°52'29"

BEARING

N52°09'01"W

N7°12'46"W

N56°37'02"W

N11°40'47"W

N44°56'04"W

N44°56'04"W

CHORD

330.39'

67.83'

361.92'

133.64'

381.42'

466.18'

N 87°24'50" W   93.27'

LOT 604
29,085 sq.ft.
0.668 acres

394.62'

27
5.5

7'

27
5.7

0'

294.83'

30.00' 30.00'

26
.00

'
30

.00
'

CONTACT:

CHECKED BYDRAWN BY

PROJECT NUMBER

FOR:

PROJECT MANAGER

PRINT DATE

PHONE:

LAYTON
1485 W. Hill Field Rd., Ste. 204
Layton, UT 84041
Phone: 801.547.1100

SALT LAKE CITY
Phone: 801.255.0529

TOOELE
Phone: 435.843.3590

CEDAR CITY
Phone: 435.865.1453

RICHFIELD
Phone: 435.896.2983

SOUTH WEST CORNER
SECTION 11
T4N, R2W
SLB&M

WEST QUARTER CORNER
SECTION 11
T4N, R2W
SLB&M

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.

C-2 Zone Description

ALL OF LOT 15, WILCOX FARMS AMENDED, A RECORDED SUBDVIDISION IN THE OFFICE OF THE DAVIS
COUNTY RECORDER.

CONTAINS 365,389 SQUARE FEET, 8.388 ACRES

ALSO:

BEG AT A PT ON THE S LINE OF WILCOX FARMS AMD SUB, SD PT BEING N 0^07'41" E 1219.79 FT ALG THE SEC
LINE TO THE EXTENSION OF A S LINE OF SD WILCOX FARMS AMD SUB & S 89^52'19" E 190.31 FT TO & ALG THE
S LINE OF SD WILCOX FARMS AMD SUB FR THE SW COR OF SEC 11-T4N-R2W, SLB&M, & RUN; TH S 89^52'19" E
59.69 FT ALG A S LINE TO AN INTERIOR CORNER OF SD WILCOX FARMS AMD SUB; TH S 0^07'41" W 96.14 FT ALG
A W LINE OF SD WILCOX FARMS AMD SUB; TH N 89^52'19" W 59.69 FT; TH N 0^07'41" E 96.14 FT TO THE POB.
CONT. 5,739 SQUARE FEET, 0.132 ACRES.

TOTAL PARCEL 371,128 SQUARE FEET, 8.520 ACRES.



EXISTING BUILDING FUTURE  BUILDING 

FUTURE OUTSIDE 

11 EXISTING PARKING 

90
0 W

ES
T 

ST
RE

ET
 PLAY AREA 

11
 P

AR
KI

NG
 

11
 P

AR
KI

NG
 

2 PARKING 

OPEN SPACE

BUILDINGS

ASPHALT

CONCRETE

LOT 501 - 52,946 SQUARE FEET, 1.216 ACRES
LOT 502 - 81,878 SQUARE FEET, 1.880 ACRES
     PROPERTY ZONE PROPOSED IS R-3
     BUILDINGS ARE 3 STORY, 2-12 PLEXES AND 1-6 PLEX
     30 UNITS ON 1.880 TOTAL ACRES, 15.96 UNITS / ACRE
     30 UNITS WITH 78 PARKING STALLS, 2.6 STALLS / UNIT
     BUILDINGS 12,378 SQUARE FEET 15.1 %
     OPEN SPACE 34,712 SQUARE FEET 42.4 %
     PARKING/ACCESS 27,656 SQUARE FEET 33.8  %
     SIDEWALKS 7,132 SQUARE FEET    8.7 %
     TOTAL LOT 502 81,878 SQUARE FEET 100.0%
PUBLIC STREET 12,158 SQUARE FEET, 0.279 ACRES
TOTAL PARCEL 146,982 SQUARE FEET / 3.374 ACRES

LEGEND

14
 P

AR
KI

NG

OPEN SPACE

OPEN SPACE
12

 P
AR

KI
NG

 

13
 P

AR
KI

NG
 

12
 P

AR
KI

NG
 

10 PARKING

12 PARKING 

10 PARKING 

OPEN SPACE

OP
EN

 S
PA

CE

1600 SOUTH STREET 1600 NORTH 
800 WEST 

OPEN SPACE

LOT 19 LOT 20LOT 24

LOT 7
(VACANT)

(LET THEM BE KIDS DAY CARE)

WILCOX FARMS AMENDED - PHASE 4
LOT 23

WILCOX FARMS
AMENDED - PHASE 3

LOT 502

LOT 6
WILCOX FARMS AMENDED

LOT 15 - WILCOX FARMS AMENDED LOT 501
WILCOX FARMS

PHASE 5

UTAH POWER AND LIGHT

POWER LINE CORRIDOR

12 PLEX

12 PLEX

6 PLEX

DUMPSTER

DUMPSTERDUMPSTER

LOT 501

( IN FEET )
HORZ: 1 inch =        ft.





 

  
 

 

 

City Council 
 STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO:    Mayor Shepherd, City Council, and Executive Staff 
 
FROM:  Spencer W. Brimley 

Community Development Director 
Spencer.Brimley@clearfieldcity.org  
(801) 525-2785 
 

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing, Discussion and Possible Action, on RZN 1507-0009 a 

request by Craig Carter on behalf of Davis School District for a Rezone of 
property from Commercial (C-2) to Public Facilities Zone (PF), located at 
1760 South Main Street (TIN: 12-242-0002). The total property is 
approximately 0.808 acres. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff’s recommendation to the Planning commission was to approve as conditioned of RZN 
1507-0009, a rezoning of approximately 0.808 acres of land from (Commercial) C-2 to (Public 
Facilities) PF zoning, based on the findings and discussion in the Staff Report.  The Planning 
Commission recommended approval of RZN 1507-0009 to the City Council based on the 
findings and conditions included in the staff report. 
 
 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Project Information 
Project Name Antelope Elementary Parking Addition 
Site Location 1760 S. Main Street 
Tax ID Number 12-242-0002 
Applicant  Craig Carter, Davis School District 
Owner Davis School District 
Proposed Actions Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) 
Current Zoning C-2 (Commercial) 
Proposed Zoning P-F (Public Facilities) 
Land Use Classification Commercial 
Gross Site Area  0.808 acres 

mailto:Spencer.Brimley@clearfieldcity.org


RZN 1507-0009 Davis School District - Antelope Rezoning 
22 September 2015 City Council Meeting 

 - 2 of 4 - 

 
 

 
 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Background 
The site is currently vacant but has been the recipient several enforcement actions related to 
maintenance of weeds.  Code enforcement has already provided notice of violation on this 
property once in this year and is preparing a second notice of violation for weeds.  During a 
visual survey of the site, staff additionally noticed old signs that had fallen down and were 
covered in weeds and had thus gone unnoticed from the street. 
 
General Plan 
A request for a rezoning from C-2 (Commercial) to PF (Public Facilities) is consistent with the 
City General plan, as the property is currently designated in the general plan as commercial.  A 
public facility zoning designation is appropriate as the uses on the property directly south are 
public buildings and this rezone will facilitate the success of the Antelope Elementary by 
assisting with a parking need.  The proposal is in compliance with the Land Use and Zoning 
map for the immediate vicinity.   
 
Zoning Map Amendment 
Base zoning and development standards can be met with this request.  There is no minimum lot 
size, so long as the parking and landscape requirements are met.   
 
Public Comment 
No public comment has been received to date. 
 
 
 
 
 

Surrounding Properties and Uses: Current Zoning District Comprehensive Plan  
Land Use Classification 

North 

 
Chevron - Triple Stop 
Convenience Store and 
Gas Station 
 

 
C-2 (Commercial)  

 
Commercial 

East Heather Estates 
Apartments (PUD) R-3 ( Residential, PUD) Residential 

South     
 
Antelope Elementary 
School 
 

R-1-9 (Residential) Residential 

West 
 
Agricultural Land 
 

 
C-2 (Commercial) 

 
Commercial 



RZN 1507-0009 Davis School District - Antelope Rezoning 
22 September 2015 City Council Meeting 

 - 3 of 4 - 

 
FINDINGS 
 
Zoning Map Amendment 

 
 
Clearfield Land Use Ordinance Section 11-6-3 establishes the following findings the Planning 
Commission shall make to approve Zoning Map Amendments.  The findings and staff’s 
evaluation are outlined below:  
 
 
 
 



RZN 1507-0009 Davis School District - Antelope Rezoning 
22 September 2015 City Council Meeting 

 - 4 of 4 - 

 

  Review Consideration Staff Analysis 

1)  
The proposed amendment is in 
accordance with the General Plan and 
Map; or 

 
Goal 1 of the Land Use Element states “Maintain 
consistency between the City’s Land Use Ordinance 
and the General Plan.”  A rezoning from C-2 
(Commercial) to PF (Public Facilities) for Antelope 
Elementary is compliant with the Land Use Plan and the 
General Plan of the City.  Parking lots are not typically 
the highest and best use for vacant property, but in this 
particular case this proposal solves a code enforcement 
action and with its proximate location to the school, will 
fulfill a much needed parking issue. 
 

2)  

 
Changed conditions make the 
proposed amendment necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of this Title. 
 

Site plan approval will be required for the development 
of the parking lot.  Applicant will be required to file 
application with the City for site plan approval. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Conceptual Site Plan 





CLEARFIELD CITY ORDINANCE 2015-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1760 SOUTH MAIN 

STREET (TIN: 12-242-0002) IN CLEARFIELD, DAVIS COUNTY, UTAH, FROM   

(C-2) COMMERCIAL TO (PF) PUBLIC FACILITIES AND THEN AMENDING THE 

CLEARFIELD CITY ZONING MAP ACCORDINGLY. 

 

PREAMBLE: This Ordinance rezones property located at 1760 South Main (TIN: 12-

242-0002) in Clearfield, Davis County, Utah, from (C-2) Commercial to 

(PF) Public Facilities and then amends the City’s Zoning Map to reflect 

those changes.   

  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to an application received by the City’s Community 

Development department, the City Council must consider a change in the zoning for the 

property located at 1760 South Main Street; and 

 

 WHEREAS, following proper notice, as set forth by state law and the City’s Land 

Use Ordinance, the City Council held a public hearing on the application for a change in 

the zoning for this property and allowed for public comment thereon; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after the public hearing, the City Council carefully considered any 

comments made during the public hearing, the developer/landowner’s position, as well as 

the Planning Commission’s recommendations regarding the proposed rezone; and 

 

 WHEREAS, following its public deliberation, the City Council has determined 

the zoning change listed below is in the best interests of Clearfield City and its residents 

and will most effectively implement the City’s planning efforts while allowing the 

subject property to be put to its highest and best use;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Clearfield City Council that: 

 

Section 1. Zoning Changes: The zoning for the following property will be hereby 

changed as follows: 

 

Property located at 1760 South Main Street, (TIN: 12-242-0002) in Clearfield, Davis 

County, Utah, from (C-2) Commercial to (PF) Public Facilities. 

 

Section 2. Amendments to Zoning Map:  The Clearfield City Zoning Map is hereby 

amended to reflect the changes in zoning outlined in Section 1 above and the City’s 

Development Services Manager is hereby directed to have a new Zoning Map prepared 

showing said rezoning. 

 

Section 3. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall become effective only upon its posting in 

three public places within Clearfield. 

 

 

 



Dated this 22
nd

 day of September, 2015, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the 

Clearfield City Council. 

 

 

 

      CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder  

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL  

 

 

AYE:  

 

NAY:  



 

CLEARFIELD CITY RESOLUTION 2015R-25 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

SUPPORTING A SPECIAL BOND ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 

NOVEMBER 3, 2015, FOR THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $298,000,000 TO 

FINANCE THE COSTS OF CONSTRUCTING AND FURNISHING 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS, ACQUIRING LAND, AND OTHER SCHOOL 

RELATED PROJECTS (THE “PROJECT”). 

WHEREAS, the Davis School District (the “District”) needs to construct public 

schools, acquire land, and complete other school related capital projects (the “Project”) 

and does not have sufficient funds on hand to pay for all of the costs of the Project and 

has determined to defray the cost thereof through the issuance of up to $298,000,000 

worth of General Obligation Bonds (the “Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to submit a proposition concerning the issuance 

of the Bonds to the vote of the qualified electors within the District pursuant to the 

provisions of the Local Government Bonding Act, Title 11, Chapter 14, Utah Code 

Annotated 1953, as amended, and applicable provisions of the Utah Election Code, Title 

20A, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (collectively, the “Act”); and  

WHEREAS, Clearfield City desires to provide support to the Board of Education 

of the Davis School District (the “Board”) in its endeavor to provide a quality educational 

environment for the students of the District, and specifically supports the District and its 

Board in the bond initiative asking voters to authorize up to $298,000,000 in General 

Obligation Bonds for the Project; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Clearfield City Council: 

That Clearfield City expresses its support of the $298,000,000 bond 

initiative proposed by the Board of Education of the Davis School District 

and encourages voter support of the initiative in order to provide funding 

for schools, land, and projects which will improve the educational 

opportunities for students in Clearfield and surrounding communities. 

 

 

Passed and adopted by the City Council at its regular meeting on the 22
nd

 day of 

September, 2015. 

 

ATTEST CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 

 

 

__________________________ ______________________________ 

Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor 

  

 



DMWEST #12584426 v1 A-9 

 

 

 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL 

 

AYE:  

 

NAY:  

 












































































































































































































	A092215
	082515wminutes
	090815wminutes
	090815minutes
	Wilcox Farms Staff Report RZN 1507-0006 Brian Robbins Rezone C-2 to R-3
	Davis Schools Staff Report RZN 1507-0009 Antelope Elementary Parking Addition
	RECOMMENDATION
	PROJECT SUMMARY
	ANALYSIS
	FINDINGS
	ATTACHMENTS

	2015-16 Davis School Distirct Rezone C-2 to PF
	2015R-25 Davis School District Bond Support 9-17-15
	2014_2015 CAPER_comdev@clearfieldcity org_20150911_160334

